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Enclosed please find a Complaint, Compliance Order and Notice of Right to Request
Hearing ("Complaint") concerning alleged violations of the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act j"RCRA"), 42 U.s.c. Sections 6901 et seq .. relating to Kessel Lumber Supply, lnc., New
cree] Drive, Keyser, West Virginia. I

The Complaint should be read and analyzed carefully to determine the ~ltematives
avail' ble to you in responding to the alleged violations. I

\

Unless you elect to resolve the proceeding as set forth in the Complaint; an Answer to the
Com laint must be filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) days of receipt ofthc
Com laint. Such Answer must rcspond specifically to the allegations in the Complaint. Failure
to res]"jlond to the Complaint by specific Answer will constitute an admission of the allegations
made In the Complaint. Failure to file an Answer may also result in the fding of a Motion for
Defau t Order and the possible issuance of a Default Order imposing the penalties proposed in
the C mplaint without further administrativc proceedings. I

\
I

You may request a hearing to contest any matter set forth in the Complaint. Such a
reques must be included in your Answer to the Complaint. Whether or not a h~aring is
requesled. you may request an informal settlcment conference to discuss resolution of this case.
Howe1er. a request for an informal settlement conference does not relieve you of the
respon~ibilityto file an Answer as specified herein. A request for a settlement conference may
be inclilided in your Answer or you may contact the staff attorney assigned to thIS case:

"
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Cheryl 1. Jamieson (3RC30)
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029·
(215) 814-2375

In addition, your company may be required to disclose to the SecJrities and Exchange
Corpmission (SEC) the existence of certain administrative or judicial procdedings taken against
your company under Federal, State or local environmental laws. Please see t~e enclosed Notice of
SE Registrants, Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings, for more information ahout
this requirement and to aid you in detem1ining whether your company is subject to it.

Sincerely,

Encl sures

cc: Cheryl 1. Jamieson (3RC30)
kanna Henry (3WC31)

I f-·-;-
. I

James N. Webb, Associate Director for Enforcement,
Waste and Chemicals Management Division

I
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BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTlO\, AGENCY

:e:~:1::::e:f~uPPIY,Inc.
HC ~4 Box4
Newl Creek Drive
Keyser, West Virginia 26726,

Respondent.

Kess I Lumber Supply, Inc.
New reek Drive
Keys r, West Virginia 26726,

Facility.

Docket No.: RCRA-03-2006-0059
I

\

Proceeding under Section 3008(a)
and (g), 42 U.S.c. § 6928(a) of tbe
Resource Conservation ~nd Recoverv

, .
Act: Complaint, Compliance Order and,
Notice of Right to Request for Hearing

I. INTRODUCTION

l.

2.

This Complaint, Compliance Order and Noticc of Right to Request Hearing
("Complaint") is filed pursuant to Section 3008(a) Dfthe ResDurce Con~ervatiDn and
Recovery Act ("RCRA"), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), and the CD'nsolidated Rules
of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penaltie~. and the
RevDcation/Termination Dr Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22 ("~onsolidated

Rules Df Practice"), a CDPY Df which is enclDsed with this Complaint. The Complainant is
the AssDciate Director fDr Enforcement, Waste and Chemicals Managerhent Division,
United States Environmental ProtectiDn Agency - RegiDn UI. I

Respondent is hereby notified of Complainant's allegatiDns that Respon~ent has violated
RCRA Subtitle C, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6921-693ge. and the West Virginia Ha~ardous Waste
Management Regulations, Title 33, Leg. Rule, Division of Environmentkl Protection,

I

Office of Waste Management, Series 20, Parts 33-20-1 through 33-20-15 (hereinafter
"WVHWMR"), at the Kessel Lumber Supply Inc. ("Kessel") facility lockled at New,
Creek Drive, Keyser, \-fineral County, West Virginia ("the Facility"). The WVHWMR,
which incorpDrate by reference 40 C.F.R. Parts 260-279 (1997 ed.), werd reauthorized by
EPA pursuant tD RCRA Section 3006, 42 U.S.C. § 6926, on October 16,\2003, and
became effective Dn December 15,2003 (68 Fed. Reg. 59542 (Dec. 15,2003)).



3. Section 3008(a) of RCRA authorizes EPA to take enforcement action1whenever it is
detennined that a person is in violation of any requirement of RCRA ~ubtitle C,
regulations promulgated thereunder, or any regulation of a state hazardous waste program
which has been authorized by EPA. The authorized provisions ofWel~t Virginia's
hazardous waste management program are requirements of RCRA Subtitle C and,
accordingly, are enforceable by EPA pursuant to Section 3008(a) OfRfRA.

Notice of Action to the State of West Viq~inill:

!
4. In accordance with Section 3008(a)(2) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2), EPA notified

the West Virginia Division of Fnvironmental Protection ("WVDEP"),'ofEPNs intent to
issue this Complaint.

II. COMPLAINT
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

In support of this Complaint, the Complainant herehy alleges the follo1ing findings of
fact and conclusions of law:

The Facility is located in the State of West Virginia.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Respondent is a corporation incorporated in the State of West Virginia ,and is a "person"
as defined by WVHWMR Section 33-20-2, which incorporates by reference 4U C.F.R.
§ 260.10, and RCRA Section 1004(15),42 U.S.c. § 690l( 15).

\

On or about February 19, 1988, Respondent submitted a "Iotification o{Hazardous Waste
Activity ("Notification") for the Facility, pursuant to Section 3010 of R~~\, 42 U.S.C.
§ 6930, to the West Virginia Division of Environmental Protection ("\\WDEP")
identifying itself as a generator of! 00 to 1,000 kilograms of hazardous Ilwaste, 0004 and
0007, per calendar month. Respondent was subsequently assigned RCRA Identification
Number WVDOI6087322. On or about April 26,1999, Respondent filed a subsequent
Notification identifying itself as a generator of less than 100 kilograms bf hazardous
waste, 0006, 0008, 0018, 0027,0039 and 0040, per calendar month.

On September 15, 2004 and on February 1,2005, representatives of EP1- and the
WVDEP conducted RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspections (hereinafter CEI Nos. I

,

and 2, respectively) at the Facility, pursuant to RCRA 3007(a), 42 U.S.G. § 6927(a).

On April 13,2005, Complainant issued an lnfonnation Request Letter plrsuant to RCRA
Section 3007(a), 42 U.S.c. § 6927(a). \

From at least February 1988 until December 31,2003, Respondent manJfactured
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17

18.

19.

20.

chromated copper arsenate ("CCA") pressure treated fence posts and mine lumber.

At all times relevant to this Complaint, "hazardous waste", F035, haslbeen "generated",
"treated" and "stored" by Respondent, at the Facility, as those terms ire defined by
WYHWMR § 33-20-2, which incorporates by reference Sections 100t(5), (6) and (33) of
RCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6903(5), (6), (33), and 40 C.F.R. §§ 260.10 and 261.3.

The Facility is a hazardous waste "storage" "facility" as those terms a~e defined by
WYHWMR § 33-20-2, which incorporates by reference 40 CPR § 260.10.

Respondent, is and has been, at all times relevant to this Complaint, tJe "owner" of the
Facility as that tenn is defined by WYHWMR § 33-20-2, which inco~oratesby reference
40 C.F.R. § 260.10.

Respondent is and has been, at all times relevant to this Complaint, the "operator" of the
Facility as that tenn is defined by WYHWMR § 33-20-2, which incorJorates by reference
40 C.F.R. § 260.10. \

Respondent is and has been, at all times relevant to this Complaint, a "~enerator" of, and
has engaged in the "treatment", "storage" or "disposal" of, "solid wast~" and "hazardous
waste", as those terms are defined by WYHWMR § 33-20-2, which indorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.

Respondent generated greater than 1,000 kilograms or more of hazardous waste, F035,
for each month relevant to the violations alleged in this Complaint.

Respondent owns and operates: (1) a hazardous waste wood treatment drip pad, (2) an
associated collection system for the drip pad (hereinafter "associated e6llection system
tank") known as a "sump", (3) an 8,000 gallon steel mix tank for the st6rage ofCCA,
solution, and (4) a 3,000 gallon tank for storage ofCCA preservative, at its Facility.

I
Respondent's hazardous waste drip pad was constructed prior to October 24, 1990.
Respondent's urip pad is an "existing drip pad" as that term is described in WYHWMR
§ 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.r-.R. § 264.570(a). \

Respondent stopped doing business at its Facility and ceased wood treatment operations
on or about December 31, 2003.

From at least January 1, 2004 until August 29, 2005, Respondent was storing, at the
Facility, approximately five thousand gallons of hazardous waste, F035,I(CCA) generated
by Respondent, in the 8,000 gallon steel CCA solution tank which does hot have
secondary containment.

3
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21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27

From at least January L 2004 until October 11,2005, Respondent wal storing, at the
Facility, approximately three thousand gallons of hazardous waste, Fd35, (CCA)
generated by Respondent in the 3,000 gallon steel CCA preservative t~nk which has
secondary containment.

From at least January 1,2004 and continuously until August 29, 2005: Respondent was
. . • I

stonng, at the FacIlay, three hundred and fifty-three gallons of hazardous waste, F035,
(CCA) generated by Respondent, in the associated collection system t~nk which does not
have secondary containment.

From at least January 1, 2004, until August 29, 2005, Respondent was1storing, at the
Facility, an undetennincd amount of hazardous waste, F035 (CCA), generated by the
Respondent, on the surface of the wood treatment drip pad, and Respohdent was moving
horse trailers and fann equipment on and off of the drip pad causing trkcking of CCA off
of the drip pad. In addition, the roof over the drip pad was leaking all~wing precipitation
\0 fall onto the drip pad. \

The 8,000 gallon tank, the 3,000 gallon tank and the associated collection system tank are
"tanks", as that tenn is defined by WVHWMR § 33-20-2, which inco~orates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10, and in accordance with WVHWMR § 33

1

-20-7.2, which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.190 which provides that tanK systems,
including sumps, and other collection devices or systems used in conjuhction with drip
pads must meet the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Subpart J- Tank SystemJ.

Count I
Operating a Hazardous Waste Storage Facility Without a Permit

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 24 of this Complaint, are inco~orated herein by
reference. \

RCRA Section 3005(a), 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a), provides, in pertinent part, that each person
owning or operating an existing facility or planning to construct a new facility for the
treatment, storage, or disposal ofhazardous waste is required to comply\with the
regulations promulgated by EPA concerning pennitting requirements an,d that the
treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous waste or the construction ofla new facility is

prohibited unless in compliance with all applicable pennitting reqUiremrts.

WYHWMR § 33-20-11, which incorporates by reference 40 C.f.R. § 27e.1 (b), and
Sections 3005(a) and (e) of RCRA. 42 U.s.c. !;i§ 6925(a) and (e), and 40 C.F.R.
S270.1 (b) provide. in pertinent part, that a person may not own or operate a hazardous
waste storage, treatment or disposal facility unless the person has tirst o~tained a pennit

\



2g.

29.

30.

31

32.

33.

or interim status for the facility from the WVDEP.

WVHWMR § 33-20-5, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. § 262.34(a)(I )(ii),
provides, in pertinent part, that a generator may accumulate hazardou~ waste on-site for
90 days or less without a permit or without having interim status, pro~ided that the waste
is placed in tanks and the generator complies with Suhpart J of 40 C.FI.R. Part 265.

WVHWMR § 33-20-5, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. § 2;62.34(a)(I )(iii)
provides, in pertinent part, that a generator may accumulate hazardous waste on-site for
90 days or less without a permit or without having interim status, proJ1ided that: the waste
is placed 011 drip pads and the generator complies with Subpart W of 40 CF.R. Part 265

,

and mamtains the following records at thc facility: (A) a description of procedures that
will be followed to ensure that all wastes are removed from the drip pid and associated
collection system at least once every 90 days; and (B) documentation <If each waste
removal, including the quantity of waste removed from the drip pad arid the sump or
collection system and the date and time of removal.

From at Icast January 1,2004 until October 11,2005, Respondent stored hazardous waste
as described more fully in Paragraphs 20 through 23, above, for greatef than 90 days

,

without a permit or without having interim status, and failed to maintain the following
records: (A) a description of procedures that will be followed to ensur~1 that all wastes are
removed from the drip pad and associated collection system at least once every 90 days;
and (B) documentation of each waste removal, including the quantity d,rwaste removed
from the dri p pad and the sump or collection system and the date and ti'me of removal.

I
WVHW'.1"R § 33-20-5, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4),
provides, in pertinent part, that a generator may accumulate hazardous (Yaste on-site
without a permit for 90 days or less, provided that the generator compli~s with the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart C, relating to prcparedness and prevention,
Subpart D, relating to contingency plan and emergency procedures.

WVHWMR Part 265, Subpart D, includes 40 l'.F.R.§ 265.51(a) which, provides that
each owner or operator must have a contingency plan for his facility. The contingency

,

plan must be designed to minimize hazards to human health or the environment from
tires, explosions, or any unplanned sudden or non-sudden release ofha~ardouswaste or
hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or surface water.

From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent failed to haveian adequate
contingency plan for the Facility as required by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R § 262.34(a)(4), which, in tum, incuiporates 40
C.F.R. ~ 265.51 (a).

5



Subpart J:

34. 40 C.r-.R. § 265.190(c) provides, in pertinent part, that tanks, sumps,! and other
collection devices used in conjunction with drip pads, as defined in § 260.10 of this
chapter and regulated under 40 C.F.R. Part 265, Subpart W, must m~et the requirements
of 40 C.F.R. Subpart J. \

35. 40 c.F. R. § 265.191 (a) and (c) provide, in pertinent parts, that for each existing tank
system that does not have secondary containment meeting the requirements of 40 C.F.R.

I

§ 265.193, the owner or operator must determine that the tank system is not leaking or
unfit for use, and keep on file at the facility a written assessment revi~wed and certified
by an independent, qualified, registered professional engineer in accordance with 40
C.F.R. § 270.11(d), that attests to the tank system's integrity, and thal

l
tank systems that

store or treat materials that become hazardous wastes suhsequent to Julv 14, 1986 must
conduct this assessment within 12 months after the date that the wastb becomes a
hazardous waste.

36. From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent did not have
l
written

assessments, as described more fully in Paragraph 35, above, for the 8,000 gallon tank
and the associated collection system tank at the Facility.

37. 40 C.F.R. § 265.197(c) provides that ifan owner or operator has a tank system which
does not have secondary containment that meets the requirements of 40 C.P.R.
§ 265.193(b) through (f) and which is not exempt from the secondary bontainment
requirements in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 265.193(g), then, (I) the!closure plan for
the tank system must include both a plan for complying with 40 C.F.R,. § 265.197(a) and
a contingent plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265.197(b); (2) a cohtingent post
closure plan for complying with 40 C.F. R. § 265 .197(b) must be prepJred and submitted
as part of the permit application.

38. From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent has two tank isystems which do
not have secondary containment that meets the requirements of 40 C. HR. § 265 .193(b)
through (f), and which are not exempt from the secondary containmenl requirements in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 265.193(g), while failing to have aClosurf plan for the tank
systems [hat includes both a plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265.197(a) and a
contingent plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265.197(b).

Sub art W:

6

39. 40 C.F.R. § 265.441 provides, in pertinent part, that for each existing drip pad as defined
in 40 C.F.R. § 265.440 of Subpart W, the owner or operator must evalJate the drip pad
and determine that it meets all of the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 26

1

5, Suhpart W,

I



40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

except the requirements for liners and leak detection systems of 40 O-F.R. § 265.443(b);
obtain and keep on file at the Facility, a written assessment of the drip pad, reviewed and
certified by an independent, qualified registered professional enginee'r that attests to the
results of the evaluation, and such assessment must be reviewed, upd~ted and re-certified
annually until all upgrades, repairs or modifications necessary to achi'eve compliance
with all of the standards of 40 C.F.R. § 265.443 of Subpart Ware cotPlete.

From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent did not evalpate the drip pad
and detennine that it meets all of the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part ~65, Subpart W,
except the requirements for.liners and leak detection systems of § 265.443(b); obtain and
keep on file at the Facility, a written assessment of the drip pad, reviered and certified
by an independent, qualified registered professional engineer that attests to the results of
the evaluation, and failed to have such assessment reviewed, updated land re-certified
annually until all upgrades, repairs or modifications necessary to achieve compliance
with all of the standards of 40 C.F.R. § 265.443 are complete as requi1red by 40 C.F.R. §
265.441.

40 C.F.R. § 265.443(a)(4)(i) provides in pertinent part that drip pads must have a
hydraulic conductivity of less than or equal to I x 10') centimeters perl second, as further
described in such regulation.

From at least January 1, 2004 to the present, Respondent's drip pad did not have a
hydraulic conductivity of less than or equal to I x 10') centImeters perl second , as further
described in 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(a)(4)(i).

40 C.F.R. § 265.443(j) provides in pertinent part that a drip pad must be operated and
maintained in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous waste or h~zardouswaste
constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by personnel or eq~ipment.

On September 15,2004, and on February 1,2005, Respondent failed t1 operate and
maintain the drip pad in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous vlaste or hazardous

,

waste constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by personnel or equipment, as
required by 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(j). \

40 C.F.R. § 265.443(i), provides in pertinent part that the drip pad surface must be
cleaned thoroughly in a manner and frequency such that accumulated r~sidues of
hazardous waste or other materials are removed, with residues being pJoperly managed
as hazardOUS waste, so as to allow weekly inspections of the cntire drip: pad surface
without interference or hindrance from accumulated residues of hazardous waste or other
materials on the drip pad. The owner or operator must document the dlte and time of
each c1caning and the cleaning procedure L1sed in the facility's operatin~ log.

7



46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent failed to thoroughly clean the
drip pad surface in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(i), and faildd to document the
date and time of each cleaning and the cleaning procedure used in thk facility's operating
log as required by 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(i).

40 C.F.R. § 265.445(c)( I) provides that the owner operator of an exi~ting drip pad, as
defined in 40 C.F.R. § 265.443(b)(1), that does not comply with the liner requirements
of 40 C.F.R. § 443(b)( 1), mllst (i) include in the closure plan for the drip pad under 40

,

C.F.R. § 265.112 both a plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265,445(a) and a
contingent plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265.445(b) in case n9t all contaminated
soils can be practicably removed at closure; and (ii) prepare a contingent post-closure
plan under 40 C.F.R. ~ 265.118 for complying with 40 CF.R. § 265.445(b) in case not
all contaminated soils can practicably be removed at closure. \

From January I, 2004 until the present, Respondent did not have a c1'!sllre plan for the
drip pad, and therefore, failed to (i) include in the closure plan for the! drip pad under 40
C.F.R. § 265.112 both a plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265,445{a) and a
contingent plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265.445(b) in case not all contaminated
soils can be pra<:ti<:ably removed at closure; and (ii) prepare a conting~nt post-closure
plan under 40 C.F.R. § 265.118 for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 265.445(b) in case not
all contaminated soils can practicably be removed at closure as requirkd by 40 C.F.R.
§ 265,443(c).

Respondent does not have, and at the time of the violations alleged herein, did not have,,
a permit to treat, store or dispose of hazardOilS waste at the Facility as 'required by
WVHWMR § 33-20-11, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § bo.1 (b), and
Section 3005(a) of RCRA, 42 C.S.c. § 6925(a). \

For the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 25 through 49, above, Respondpnt did not qualify
for the exemptions from the pemlitting requirement set forth in WVHWMR § 33-20-5,
which incorporates by reference 40 C.FR. § 262.34(a).

The Facility is, and at the time of the violations alleged herein, was a hazardous waste
management facility and Respondent was required to have a permit or !intcrim status for
the treatment, storage and/or disposal activities described in Paragraph! 25 through 49,
above. \

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-11, which incorporates by rJrerence 40 C.F.R.
§ 270.1(b), and ReRA § 3005(a) and (e), 42 U.S.c. § 6925(a) and (e), by operating a
hazardous waste treatment, storage and/or disposal facility without a pdnnit or interim
status from at least January I, 2004 until the present. \

8
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53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

Count II
Failure to Have a Contingency Plan

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 52, above, of this Complaint: are incorporated
herein by reference. i

I
WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.ER. § 264.51, provides
that the owner and operator of a facility must have a contingency plart which is designed
to minimize hazards to human health or the environment from tIres, ~xplosions, or any
unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituents to air, soil or surface water at the facility.

From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent did not have a contingency
plan which satisfied the requirements ofWVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R § 264.51, for the Facility. I

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by ~eference 40
CF.R. § 264.51, from at least January I, 2004 to the present, by failin'g to have a
contingency plan for the Facility. I

Count III
Failure to have a Closure Piau for the Facility

The allegations of Paragraphs I through 56, above, of this Complaint, are incorporated
herein by reference.

WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.112, provides,
in pertinent part, that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste mana~ement facility
must have a written closure plan which meets the requirements specitlep in 40 CF.R.
Part 264, Subpart G, and 40 C.F.R. § 264.197 (tank closure) and 40 C.ER. § 264.575
(dnp pad closure).

From at least January I, 2004 to the present, Respondent did not have a written closure
plan for the Facility, as requIred by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which inc~rporatcsby
reference 40 C F.R. § 264.112, as well as 40 CF R.§ 264.197 and § 26l575.

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R.
§ 264. I 12, from at least Jan uary 1, 2004 to the present, by fai Ii ng to hav\e a closure plan,
for the Facility, which meets the requirements specitled in 40 CF.R. Part 264, Subpart

I
I

\



61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

G, and 40 C.F.R. § 264.197 (tank closure) and 40 C.F.R. § 264.575 (drip pad closure).

Count IV
Failure to Prepare a Contingent Post-Closure Plan for the Drip Pad

The allegations of Paragraphs I through 60, abovc, of this Complaint, lre incorporated
herein by reference.

WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
q264.575(c)(l), provides that the owner or operator of an existing drip pad, as defined in
40 C.F.R. § 264.570, that does not comply with the liner requirements bf 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.573(b)( I) must (i) include in the closure plan for the drip pad unaer 40 C.F.R.

<

§ 264.112 both a plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 264.575(b) in case not all
contaminated subsoils can be practicably removed at closure; and (ii) ~repare a contingent
post-closure plan under 40 C.F.R. § 264.118 [or complying with 40 C.f-R. § 264.575(b)
in case not all contaminated subsoils can be practicably removed at closure.

I
From January 1,2004 until the present, Respondent's existing drip pad~did not comply

<

with the liner requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.573(b)(I) and Respond~nt did not prepare
a contingent post-closure plan undcr 40 C.F.R. § 264.118 for complying with
§ 264.575(b) in case not all contaminated subsoils can be practicably r~moved at closure.

I
Respondent violated WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporatcs by n'ference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.575(c)(l) by failing to prepare a contingent post-closure plan under 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.118 for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 264.575(b) in case not all cohtaminated
subsoils can be practicably removed at closure.

Count V
Failure to Prepare a Contingent Post-Closure Plan for the 8,000 gallon tank

and the associated collection system (tank) for the driplpad

Ti,e allegations of Paragraphs I through 64, above, of this Complaint, a~e incorporated
herein by reference. \

WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 2~4.197(C),
provides that if an owner or operator has a tank system which does not Have secondary
containment that meets the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(b) thro~gh (f) and which
is not exempt from the secondary containment reqUIrements in accordanbe with 40 c.F.R.
§ 264.193( g), then, (I) the closure plan for the tank system must include: both a plan for
complying with 40 C.F.R. § 264.197(a) and a contingent plan for complying with 40
C.F.R. § 264.197(b); (2) a contingent post-closure plan for complying with 40 C.F.R.

10



67.

68.

§ 265.197(b) must bc prcpared amI submitted as part of the permit application.

From January 1,2004 until the present, Respondent did not prepare a tntingent post-
I

closure plan under 40 C.F.R. § 264.197(c) for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 264.197(b) for
the 8,000 gallon tank and the associated collection system tank for the :drip pad, at the
Facility, which did not have secondary containment and were not cxcmpt under 40 C.F.R.
§ 264. 193(g). \

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by r~ference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.197(c), by failing to prepare a contingent post-closure plan for c6mplying with 40
C.F.R. § 264. I97(b) for the 8,000 gallon tank and the associatcd col\ec'~ion system (tank)
for the drip pad, at the Facility, which did not have secondary containment and were not
exempt under 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(g).

Count VI
Failure to Provide Site Security

69. The allegations of Paragraphs I through 68, above, of this Complaint are incorporated
herein by reference. \

70. WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which lI1corporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.14(a),
provides, in pertinent part, that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste management
facility must prevent the unknowing entry, and minimize the possibility! for the
unauthorized entry, of persons or livestock onto the active portion ofhi~ facility, unless
he can demonstrate to the Regional Administrator that: (I) physical coritact with the
waste, structures, or equipment within the active portion of the facility ~ill not injure
unknowing or unauthorized persons or livestock which may enter the a~tive portion of a
facility; and (2) disturbance of the waste or cquipment, by the unknowi~g or unauthorized

I

entry of persons or livestock onto the active portion of a facility, will not cause a violation
of the requirements of this part. \

71. WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.14(b) and (c),
provides, in pertinent part, that unless the owner or operator has made a\successflll
demonstration to the Regional Administrator pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 294.14(a), a facility
must have a 24-hour surveillance system which continuously monitors and controls entry
onto the active portion of the facility or an artificial or natural barrier which completely

,

surrounds the active portion of the facility, a means to control entry at all times though
the gates or other entrances to the active portion of the facility, and a fadility must post a
sign with the legend, "Danger Unauthorized Personnel Keep Out", at edch entrance to the
active portion of a facility, and at other locations in sufficient numbers tb be seen from
any approach to thc active portion of the Facility.

II



72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent failed to prevent the unknowing
entry, and minimize the possibility for the unauthorized entry, of pers6ns or livestock
onto the active portion of his facility, and failed to make thc dcmonstration to the
Regional Administrator, as required by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.14(a), and failed to fultill the requirements ff

Respondent violated WVHWMR 933-20-7.2, which incorporates by Jeference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.14(a)-(c), from at least January I, 2004 to the present, by failing] to
prevent the unknowing entry, and minimize the possibility for the una~thorized entry, of
persons or livestock onto the active portion of his facility, failing to m1ke the
demonstration to the Regional Administrator as required by WVHWrvfR § 33-20-7.2,
which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.14(a), and tailing to fultill the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.14(b) and (c).

Count VII
Failure to Establish Financial Assurance

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 73, above, of this Complaint, ~re incorporated
herein by reference. \

WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.143, provides,
in pertinent part, that the owner or operator of a hazardous waste management facility
must establish or have financial assurance for the closure of the facility by choosing from
the options of 40 C.F.R. § 264.\43 (a) through (f). \

From at least January I, 2004 to thc present, Respondent did not establ\sh or have
tinancial assurance for the closure of the Facility as required by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2,

I

which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.143. \

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.143, from at least January 1, 2004 to the present, by failing to estfblish financial
assurance for the closure of the facility by choosing from one of the options of 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.143 (a) through (f).

Count VIII I
Failure to obtain written assessments for two tanks that did not have

secondary containment \

TI1e allegations of Paragraphs 1 thrOLlgh 77, above, of this Complaint, a~e incorporated
I

herein by reference .

12



79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84

WVHWMR § 33~20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. §:264.l9l(a) and (c)
provides, in pertinent part, that for each existing tank system that does! not have secondary
containment meeting the requirements of 40 CF.R. § 264.193, the owher or operator" ,

must determine that the tank system is not leaking or unfit for use, and keep on file at the
facility a written assessment reviewed and certified by an independent!, qualified,
registered professional engineer in accordance with 40 CF.R. § 270.l1(d), that attests to
the tank system's integrity, and that tank systems that store or treat materials that become
hazardous wastes subsequent to July 14, 1986 must conduct this assessment within 12
months after the date that the waste becomes a hazardous waste.

On January 1, 2004 until the present, Respondent did not have written assessments, as
described more fully in Paragraph 79, above. for 8,000 gallon tank sys\em and the
associated collection system tank for the drip pad, at the Facihty, which did not have
secondary containment and were not exempt under 40 C.F.R. § 264.19f(g).

Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by n~ference 40 e.F.R.
§ 264.191 (a) and (c), by failing to have a written assessment as describ~d more fully in
Paragraph 79, above, for the 8,000 gallon tank system and the associat~d collection
system tank for the drip pad, at the Facility, which did nol have second~rycontainment
and were not exempt under 40 CF.R. § 264.193(g).

Count IX
Failure to Obtain a Written Assessment ofthe Drip pad

l
I

The al1egations of Paragraphs I through 81, above, of this Complaint, are incorporated
herein by reference.

WVHW\;lR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. § 264.571, provides,
in pertinent part, that for each existing drip pad as defined in 40 C.F.R. '§ 264.570, the
owner or operator must evaluate the drip pad and determine that it meet~ all of the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart W. except the requirements for liners and

I

leak detection systems of 40 CF.R. § 264.573(h); obtain and keep on file at the Facility, a
I

written assessment of the drip pad, reviewed and certified by an indeperident, qualified
registered professional engineer that attests to the results of the evaluation, and such
assessment must be reviewed, updated and re-certified annually until all! upgrades, repairs
or modifications necessary to achieve comphance with all of the standards of 40 e.F.R. §
264.573 are complete.

From January I, 2004 to the present, Respondent did not evaluate the drip pad and
determine that it meets all of the requirements of 40 CF.R. Part 264. Subpart W, except
the requirements for liners and leak detection systems of 40 C.F.R. § 264.573(b); obtain

, I
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85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

\

dnu keep on file at the facility. a wntten assessment of the drip pad. reviewed and
certified by an independent, qualified registered professional engineerithat attests to the
results of the evaluation. and such assessment must be reviewed, updated and re-certified
annually until all upgrades, repairs or modifications necessary to aehie,ve compliance with
all of the standards of 40 C.F.R. § 264.573 of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart W, are
complete us required by WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. § 264.571(a). II

Respondent violated WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2. which incorporates by rderencc 40 C.P.R.
§ 264.571, from January I, 2004 to the present, by failing to evaluate the drip pad and

,

determine that it meets all of the requirements of this SUbpal1, except t~e requirements for
liners and leak detection systems of 40 C.F.R. § 264.573(b); obtain ancl keep on file at the
Facility, a written assessment of the drip pad, reviewed and certified by an independent,
qualified registered professional engineer that attests to the results oft~e evaluation, and
reviewed, update and re-certified annually such assessment until all upgrades, repairs or
modifications necessary to achieve compliance with all of the standards of 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.573 of 40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart W, are complete.

Count X
Failure ~o Meet Hydraulic ConductiVity Requirement for the\DriP Pad

The allegations of Paragraphs I through 85, above, of this Complaint, are incorporated
herein by reference. I

WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.573(a)(4)(i), provides in pertinent part that drip pads must have a hydraulic
conductivity of less than or equal to I x I O~7 centimeters per second, as 'further described
in such regu lation. \

From at least January 1,2004 to the present. Respondent's drip pad did II not have a
hydrauhc conductlvlty ofiess than or equal to I x 1O~7 centlmeters per second, as further
described in WYHWMR § 33-20-7~2. which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.5 73(a)(4lei).

Respondent violated WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by re,ference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.573(a)(4)(i), from at least January 1,2004 to the present, by faili~g to have, for its
urip pad, a hydraulic conductivity ofless than or equal to J x ](J~7 centirrteters per second,
as further described in WYHWMR § 33-20-7.2. which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.R. § 264.573(a)(4)(i)

14



Count XII
Failure to Inspect Drip Pad Weekly

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

95

96.

97.

Failurcto Minimize Tracking of Hazardous Waste from the Drip Pad

i I

The allegations of Paragraphs I through 89, above, of this Complaint, 'are incorporated
herein by reference.

I

WVHWMR 9 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. 9!264.573(j),
provides in pertinent part that drip pads must be operated and maintained in a manner to
minimize tracking of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents off the drip pad as
a result of acti vities by personnel or equipment. \

! I

, I

On Septembe~ 15,2004, and on February 1,2005, Respondent failed to operate and
maintain the drip pad in a manner to minimize tracking of hazardous \~aste or hazardous

I

waste constituents off the drip pad as a resu It of activi ties by personnel or equipment, as
required by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference ~O C.F.R.

§ 264.573(j). \ I
Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by r"ference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.573(j), on September 15, 2004, and on February I, 2005, by faili;ng to operate and
maintain its drip pad to minimizc the tracking of hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities by personnel or eql'tipment.

I,
,

,

!
I

The allegationk in Paragraphs 1 through 93. above, are incorporated herein by reference
as though fully set forth at length herein

I

WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 CF.R. 9 -?64.574(b)(3),
provides that while a drip pad is in operation, it must be inspected weekly and after
storms to detect evidence of any deterioration or cracking of the drip p~d surface.

i I
from at least August 1,2001 until January l, 2004, Respondent failed tb inspect the drip
pad at the Facility weekly as required by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by
reference 40 C/,.R. § 264.574(b)(3). \

Respondent vi~\ated WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 264.574(b), by failing to inspect the drip pad at the Facility weekly. a~ described in
Paragraph 94, above.

I

! Count XIII'
Failure to Properly Store Land-Disposal Restricted Waste

15



98.

99.

100.

101.

102.

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 97, above, of this comPlaint,lare incorporated
herein by reference.

i
I

WVHWMR § 33-20-10.1 which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 268.50(a),
provides, in pertinent part, that:

!

Except as provided in this section, the storage of hazardous waste restricted from
land disposal under [40 C.F.R. Part 268, Subpart Cor] RCRA Section 3004 is

,

prohibited unless the following conditions are met: (1) a generator stores such
,

waste in tanks, containers or containment buildings on-site for the purpose of the
accum'ulation of such quantities of hazardous waste as necessa~ to facilitate
proper recovery, treatment, or disposal, and the generator complies with the

. ,

requirements in [40 C.F.R.] § 262.34 and [40 C.F.R.] Parts 264 and 265.

The hazarctoul waste referred to in Paragraphs 20 through 23, above, Jand at the time of
its storage at the Facility, was land-disposal restricted hazardous waste; within the
meaning of WyHWMR § 33-20-10.1, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 268.50(a). ! I

I .
The land-disposal restricted waste referred to in Paragraphs 20 through 23, above. did not
meet the applicable treatment standards or prohibition levels under WVHWMR

, I

§ 33-20-10.1, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 268.40, at the time of their
storage at the Facility. I

I

The drip pad r~ferred to in Paragraph 23, above, is not and. at the time bf the violations
alleged herein,' was not a container, tank or containment build"ing.

",

16

103. As alleged in Paragraphs 25 through 49, above, Respondent failed to comply with the
requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.34 and 40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 265 w'ith respect to the
hazardous waste storage described in Paragraphs 20 through 23, above.!

I I
104. Respondent violated WVHWMR § 33·20·10.1, which incorporates by reference 40

C.F.R. § 268.50(a), from at least January 1,2004 until the present, bys\oring land
disposal restncted wastes 111 a manner whIch failed to meet the conditions set forth ll1 40
c.F.R. § 26234 \

'I I
:, Compliance Tasks I

Respondent shall perfonTI the following Compliance Tasks within the time periods
speci red. "Days" as used herein shall mcan calendar days unless specified otherwise.

I .

I I
I
!

I



10. Compliance Tasks:

A. Immediately, Respondent shall:

I
1. Cease the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste at the Facility cxcept in,
accordance with a permit or interim status under RCRA Section 3005(a) and (e), 42
U.S.C § 6925(a) and (e), and/or WVHWMR § 33-20-11, or in accordance with all of the
conditions for a valid exemption from such pennit requirements.

In particular, Respondcnt shall:

I

a. Remove any remaining liquid and solid/debris CCA waste (F035)
from the 8,000 gallon tank, the 3,000 gallon tank, and the associated
collection system tank for the drip pad, at the Facility, imd dispose of
such hazardous waste in accordance with WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which
incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. Part 264. I

,

\

b. Remove the dry CCA waste, wood chips and wood debris from the
drip pad, at the Facility, and dispose of such hazardous'waste in

,

accordance with WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. Part 264. \

c. Cease the storage of land-disposal restricted waste e~cept in
I

accordance with WVHWMR § 33-20-llJ.l, which incorporates by
reference 40 C.F.R. § 268.50. \

d. Repair the roof of the building which surrounds the drip pad to prevent
precipitation from falling onto the drip pad at the Facility. Respondent
shall use tarps, if necessary, for further protection from rain water.

B. Within fifteen (15) days after the effective date of this Complaint, Respondent shall
provi e site security as required by WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporat~s by reference 40
C.F.. § 264.14(b) and (c). \

I
a. Respondcnt shall fence the open side of the drip pad building and lock
such fencing. \

h. Respondent shall post a sign with the legend, '"Danger-Unauthorized
,

Personnel Keep Out", at each entrance to the active portion of the
I

Facility, and at other locations, III sufficient numbers, to be seen from any
!

17



I approach to the active portion of the Facility.

C. Provide doPies of all hazardous waste manifests for wastes which1have been, and will
be, removed,from the Facility from January 1, 2004 until WVDEP-approved regulatory
closure has bccurred, to the WVDEP and to EPA, and retain returned manifests at the
Facility for ~ period of three years as required by WVHWMR § 33-20-5, which
incorporates ,by reference 40 C.F.R. § 262.40. \

I .

I
D. Within (or/v-jive (45) days after the effective date of this Complaint, Respondent

sha I commence clo~u;e: I
'i

Specifically, Respondent shall:

1. p1vide a written closure plan and contingent post-closure ~Ians for the drip
,

pad and tanks, at the Facility, to WVDEP, for approval, and tq EPA for review, in
accordance with WVHWMR § 33-20-7.2, which incorporateS by reference 40
C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart G, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 264.197 and 264.575.

, I
2. Prtide financial assurance for the Facility as required by WVHWMR

, ,

§ 33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264}43.

3. ImhlediatelY upon WVDEP's approval of such plans, impl~ment such plans as
directed by WVDEP. '

I
106. Certification' - Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this Complaint,

Respondent shall certify to EPA in writing that it is in compliance with the Compliance
Tasks described in Paragraph 105, above. Such certification shall be made in the marmer
specified in Paragraph 107, below, orthis Complaint. '

I
I

107. Submissions to EPA
(1). Any notice, report, certilLcation, data presentation, or other document submitted by

,

Respondent pursuant to this Complaint, including, but not limited to, the document
referred to in Paragraph 106, above, shal! include a certification by a responsible,
corporate officer of Respondent. For purposes of such certification, a responsible
corporate offiter of Respondent means: I. A president. secretary, treasurer, or vice
president ofthe corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person
who performs ,similar policy or decision-making functions ror the corporation; or 2. The
manager of one or more manUfacturing, production, or operating facilities employing
more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding $25
million (in second quarter 1980 dollars), if authority to sign documents has been assigned

I

or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures. The aforesaid
I

\ 18
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and:

I
I
I
I

certification,shall provide the following statement above the Signaturt of the responsible
' ,

corporate officer signing the certification on behalfofthe Respondent:
I I

II I certify under penalty of law that this documeAt and all
attachments were prepared under my direction 'or supervision
according to a system designed to assure that qualified personnel
properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on
my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or
those persons directly responsible for gathering the information,
the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are
significant penalties for submitting false infom'Iation, including the
possibility of fine and/or imprisonment for kno:wing violations.

Signature: I

Name: I

I Title: :

(2). Mailings to EPA - Documents to be submitted to EPA pursuant to or
concerning this Complaint shall be sent via certified mail, return receipt
requebed, or overnight commercial delivery service to the attention of:

I Jeanna R. Henry (3WC31) I

I RCRA Entorcement and Compliance Officer
, United States Environmental Protection Agency

Region III 'I

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103 I

I
I

I
Cheryl L. Jamieson, Esq. (3RC30)

,

Senior Ass!. Regional Counsel I
United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 111 I
1650 Arch Street I

Philadelphia, PA 191m
i

(3). Mailings to WVDEP - Documents to be mailed by Respondent to WVDEP
shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or overnight commercial
delivetr service, to: I

I 19 I
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I
\

Jamie Fenske i
Northern Cnit Sllpervisor I
Div. Of WasIe & Waste Management
West Virginia Dept. of Environmental Protection
131 A Peninsula Street . I
Wheeling, WV 26003 I,

10. Thc failure of Respondent to comply with the Compliance Tasks set forth in Paragraphs
104 through 106 of this Complaint, including failure to completc any task within the
deadline specified for such task, shall be deemed a violation of this Complaint and may
subject Respondcnt to further administrative or judicial enforcement. \

III. CIVIL PENALTY ASSESSMENT

109 Section 3008(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6928(g), provides in relevant part that any person
who viollltes any requirement ofRCRA Subtitlc C, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6921-693ge, shall be
liable for a civil penalty not to exceed $25,000 for each day of violation. The Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996 ("DCIA") and the subsequent Civil Monetary
Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19 ("Penalty Inflation Rule"), a copy of

,

which is enclosed with this Complaint, increase the maximum civil penalty that can be
,

assessed by EPA under RCRA for each violation occurring on or afte~ January 30, 1997
by 10%, to $27,500 per day, and for each violation occurring on or aftcr March 16, 2004,
to $32,500 per day. \

I

110. Pursuant to 40 C.F. R. § 22.14(a)(4 )(ii), Complainant is not proposing 'a specific penalty at
this time, but will do so at a later date after an exchange ofinforrnation has occurred. See
40 C.F.R. § 22.19(a)(4). For purposes of dctcrmining the amount of any penalty to be
assessed, Scction 3008(a)(3), 42 U.Sc. § 6928(a)(3), requires EPA to'take into account
thc seriousness of the violation and any good faith efforts by Respondent to comply with
the applicable requirements. In general, in developing thc proposed p~nalty, Complainant
will be guided by EPA's June 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy ("RCM Penalty Policy"),
a copy of which is enclosed with this Complaint. This policy provides: a rational,
consistent and equitable methodology for applying the statutory penalty factors
enumerated above to the specific facts and circumstances of this case. i

I
111. Under the RCRA Penalty Policy, an initial gravity-based penalty will be calculated for

each violation based on two components: the potential for harm of the"violation and the
extent of deviation from the applicable requirement. The results of that analysis will be
used to select corresponding penalty values for single day and multi-day violations from
the penalty matrices published In the RCRA Penulty Policy. The initial penalty for each
violation will be adjusted in accordance with the RCRA Pellalty Policy to account for• I

70 I
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other factors I including any good faith efforts to comply with the appljcable rcquirements,
and any willfulness or negligence. In addition to the gravity-based penalty, the RCRA
Penalty Polih requires that penalty assessments capture any signiftccint economic benefit
that Respondent realized as a result of noncompliance. As a basis for, calculating a
specific pen.Jlty pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.19(a)(4), Complainant wiil consider, among
other factors! facts or circumstances lmknown to Complainant at the time of issuance of
the Complairlt that hecome known after the Complaint is issued. Complainant will
consider Respondent's ability to pay a penalty as a factor in determining the proposed
civil penalty.1 The burden of raising and prcsenting evidmce regarding any inability to
pay a particular penalty rests with the Respondent. \

112 Pursuant to 4'0 C.F.R. § 22.14(a)(4)(ii), an explanation of the number !,of and severity of
violations is ~et forth below. When EPA proposes the assessment of a civil penalty of up
to $27,500.00 per day (if the violation occurred prior to March 14,2004) or 532,500 per
day (if the vi~lation occurred on or after March 16,2004) against Respondent for each of
the violation~ alleged in this Complaint, pursuant to Section 3008(a)(3) and (g) of RCRA,
that penalty p'roposal will be based, in part, on the following application of the statutory
and penalty p6licy factors to the facts and circumstances of this case. 'This explanation
docs not con~tilute a "demand" as that term is defined in the Equal Ac'cess to Justice Act,
28 U.S.c. § 2412. I

I !
113. COUNT I: Owning/operating a hazardous waste treatment, storage or disposal

, '

facility without a permit or interim status I
I '

Potential for Harm -Moderate i
Deviation froin Requirements- Moderate I

Days ofl\on-Compliance- I day penalty plus 179 days multi-day penalty

\ 0'1 A !.From at least January 1, 2 04 untt ugust 29, 2005, Respondent was stonng
I .:

hazardous waste. F035, chromated copper arsenate, In an S,OOO gallon tank and on the
,

drip pad, and in an associated collection system tank for the drip pad, at the Facility,
From at least January I, 2004 unti I October II, 2005, Respondent was, storing hazardous
waste F035 inia 3,000 gallon tank at the Facility. Because Respondent was not

, ,

complying wilh the regulatory conditions to qualify lor exemption from a pcrmit on
January 1, 20Q4, and because Respondent stored wastes for a period of time exceeding
the timc allowed by the hazardous waste accumulation exemption specified in 40 C.F.R.
§ 262.34(a)( I )'(iii), Respondent was required to have a hazardous waste storage permit or
interim status.1 The total numher of days by which Respondcnt's storage of hazardous
waste exceeded the period of exemption far exceeds 180 days, which is the maximum
number of day;s for which penalties are generally assessed for such violations as explamed
on page 25 of lhe ReRA Penalty Policy.
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Gra~ity-Based Penalty Componellt - Potential for Harm: The: "potential for harm"
arising from: Respondent's storage of hazardous waste without a permit or interim status
is moderate.! Respondent's failure to comply with the permitting requirements of
RCRA and the authorized West Virginia Pennsylvania Hazardous Waste Management

, ,

Regulations :had the potential to cause harm to human health, the environment and the
,

integrity of the RCRA program. The permitting process is the backbone of the RCRA
, ,

program. It'lensures that EPA is aware of the existence of those faci,lities which treat,
store or dispose of hazardous waste and that such facilities handle hazardous waste in
accordance 1ith regulatory or permit standards designed to minimi~e their risk to

, '

human health and the environment. Failure to obtain a permit or interim status prior to
the storage df substantial quantitics of hazardous waste for periods Jxceeding the 90
day accumulation exemption period indicates that a faCIlity is not in'stituting those
practices anq procedures required by RCRA for the safe management and handling of
hazardous ,)aste, thereby posing a substantial risk to human health and the
environmeni. Specitlcally, Respondent's storage activity increased :the risk that a
catastrophic :event such as a fire Or accidental spill could have released substantial
quantities of hazardOllS waste in the environmcnt.

ExteJ ojDeviation: The violations of the permit requirement ,were significant and
extended foria significant period of time. Although operating a hazarpous waste
treatment, st6rage or disposal facility without a permit or qualifying for the 90-day
accllmulatioJ exemption represcnts a substantial violation, the extent 'of deviation is

, ,
mitigated here by the fact that Respondent did remove some the hazardous waste in
August or Se'ptember 01'2005. The foregoing will justify a gravity-ba',sed penalty in the
mOderate-m1derate range of the RCRA Penalty Policy matrix. I

MUltifDay Penalty Component: With a "moderate" potential for harm and
"moderate" ex tent of deviation, a multi-day penalty is presumed appropriate under the

, ,

RCRA Penalty Policy. Complainant has determined the alleged violations occurrcd on or
about January 1, 2004 until August 29,2005 which is a time period w'ell in excess of the

,

180 days at \vhich penalties for such violations may be capped under the RCRA Penalty

~~ I
!

Economic Benefit a/Non-Compliance: Pursuant to the RCRA iPenalty Policy the
economic beJefit of noncompliance may be included in the assessed p,enalty to ensure
that a violatot does not gain an economic advantage through its violations. Respondent's
violations in~olved avoidance of hazardous waste transportation costs'because shipments
did not occurlat 90-day intervals. Further, Respondent avoided the co~ts of. among other
things. applyjng for a rem1it, designing and constructing a hazardous Iwaste storage
facility, and financial assurance for closure. which are all costs associated with the

, '

storage ofhaiardous waste for periods longer than 90 days. Compliance with RCRA

I
,

I
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I
regulations r~4uires a financial commitment which all generators are ~required to
undertake. Successful implementation of the RCR.I\ program depends on the compliance

I ,

and accountability of all hazardous waste generators and facilities and involves costs that
must be sharb equitably among all regulated entities and to prevent ariy violator from
enjoying a c6mpetitive advantage by avoiding or delaying hazardous ~vaste management
expenses. Cbnsequently, an assessment for economic benefit for the ~voided shipments
and other aV~ided costs may be included in the penalty calculation with regard to Count I
of the Comp laint. I

I I

COUNT II: 'Failure to have a Contingency Plan I
Potential for: Harm - Major
Deviation fre?m the Requirement - Major
Days of Non-Compliance - One

I I

On January I, 2004, Respondent became a large quantity generator of hazardous
waste and thd owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste manageme~t facility. As such,
Respondent J,as required to comply with the emergency preparedness' requirements of '
RCRA Whid\ includes a requirement to have a contingency plan. I

Gravity-Based Penalty Component- Potential for Harm: The purpose of a
contingency plan is to minimize hazards to human health or the envir~nment from fires,
explosions, o~ any unplanned sudden or non-sudden release ofhazard6us waste or
hazardous wilste constituents to air, soil, or surface water. The provisions of the plan
must be carri~d out immediatelv whenever there is a fire, explosion or" release which
could threaterl human health or'the environment. The failure to have Juch a plan could
lead to ineffe~tive or dangerous responses during an emergency. IfR0spondent fails to
respond apprJpriately during an emergency event, human health and t~e environment
may be placed at significant risk. Consequently, such a violation has amajor potential for
harm.

Extent'lofDeviation: From at least January 1,2004 until the present, Respondent
has failed to have a contingency plan for the Facility. This violation represents a
substantial "major" deviation from the regulatory requirement. I

N I) . d . b fi l' h' d' I,o mu tl- ay, economIc ene It, or comp lance Istorya Justments are,
contemplated for this violation at this time.

I
COUNT III: Failure to Have a Written Closure Plan

I
Potential for Harm - Major
Extent of Deviation - Major

I
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I

I
I

I
Days of Non-Compliance - One \

ResJ,ondent owns a drip pad, an associated collection system I:(tank) for the drip
pad, an 8.000 gallon tank and a 3,000 gallon tank, at its Facility, which held hazardous
waste, F0351 Respondent ceased wood treatment operations at the Facility at the end of
December, ~003. Although Respondent has removed a large portion'ofthe hazardous
waste from these four hazardous waste management units in August imd October of 2005,
Respondent is required to have required to have a written closure pial for the Facility.

GraJitY-BaSed Penalty Componellt- Potential/or [{arm: The',pLlrpOSe ofa written
closure plan 'is to identify the steps which must be taken to perform p~rtial or final closure
of a facility.\The plan must describe how the hazardous waste management units at the
facility will'ge closed in accordance with the RCRA regulations inchi,ding, but not limitcd
to, a description of how the hazardous waste will be removed or disposed of In the
instant case, \he facility has ceased operating and some hazardous waste has been lelt on
site with no plan to remove the remaining waste or to determine whether contamination
from the haz~rdous waste management umts is present in soil, surface water or ground
water. The f~ilure to have a closure plan has the potential to put humkn health and thc
environment ',at signi ficant risk. Therefore, such a violation presents dmajor potential for

~rm. \ \

Extent ofDevil/tion; From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent has
failed to havd a closure plan for the Facility's drip pad, associated collection systcm and
tanks. This i~ a substantial and "major" deviation from the regulatory', requirements.

N I} , d . b - I' h' d' \o mll tl- ay, economic enelH, or comp mnce IStOry a Jllstments are
contemplated\ for this violation at this time. II

COUNT IV: \FailUre to Prepare a Contingent Post-Closure Plan for the Drip Pad

Potential for Harm - Major I
Devlaiion from Requirement - Major I
Days 9f J\on-Compliance - One I
Respohdent owns a drip pad which was used for wood treatment operations until

the end ofDe~ember2003. During wood treatment operations, hazard,ous waste, F035,
was placed onto the drip pad. Hazardous waste is present on the drip pad. In addition,

, '

the roof over the drip pad leaks resulting in precipitation falling onto the drip pad.
Because closu~e of the drip pad has not yet occurred, and due to possibi lity that
contaminated subsoils are present which may not be able to be practicably removed at
closure, Respdndent must prepare a written contingent post-closure plan.

I

24 \
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I
Gravity-Based Pel/altv Component - Potential/or Harm: The purpose of a written
contingent pbst-closure plan is to identify the steps that will be taken 'if contaminated
subsoils are present at the Facility which cannot be practicably remo<ed after closure
activities fori the drip pad have been implemented. The contingent pd,st-closure plan must
describe pla~ned monitoring and maintenance activities to be utilized, to ensure the
integrity of the containment system during the post-closure care period. The failure to
have a contirigent post-closure plan has the potential to put human health and the
environment lat significant risk. Therefore, such a violation presents a"major" potential

for hann. \

Extent ofDeviation: From at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent has failed
to havc'a written contingent post-closure plan for the Facility's drip pad. This is a
substantial aid "major" deviation from the regulatory requirements. I
No multi-day, economic benefit, or compliance history adjustments a;e contemplated for

this Violation i
( this time \

117. COUNT V: Failure to Prepare a Contingent Post-Closure Plan for Two Tanks
I Which do not have Secondary Containment

Potential for Harm - Major
I

Deviation from Requirement - Major
Days 6r Non-Compliance - One

Respohdent owns and operates an 8,000 gallon tank and an associated collection
system (tank) Ifor the drip pad at the Facility. The two tanks which do 'not have secondary

I '
containment were used to store hazardous waste, F035, from at least January 1,2004

I '

until August 29, 2005. Recause the closure of such tanks has not yet occurred, and due to
the possibility~ that all contaminated soils cannot be practicably remov~d or
decontaminatid, Respondent is required to prepare a written contingel"\t post-closure plan.

Gravity-Based Pel/alty - Potential for Harm: The purpose ofa writtenlcontingent post
closure plan i~ to identify the steps which will be taken if contaminated suhsoi Is are
present at the Facility which cannot be practicably removed or deconta~inated after

I '

closure activities for the two tanks have been implemented. The contingent post-closure
plan must desdribe planned monitoring and maintenance activities to be utilized to ensure
the integrity ot'the containment system during the post-closurc care peliod. The failure to
have a conting~nt post-closure plan has the potential to put human heal'th and the
environment at significant risk. Therefore, sueh a violation presents a ":maJor" potential

for hann. \

25
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Extent ofDeviation: From at least January 1, 2004 to the present, Respondent has failed,
to have a wri,tten contingent post-closure plan for the Facility's drip pad. This is a
substantial and "major" deviation from the regulatory requirements. \

="10 mUlti-dal economic benefit, or compliance history adjustments are contemplated for
this violatiori at this time

COUNT YI] Failure to Provide Site Security

poteLial for Harm- Minor
Devi~tion from Requirement-Major
DaYS'i of Non-Compliance- One plus multi-day lor 179 days

I
Respondent owns and operates a facility with hazardous waste management units

on site. Resdondent ceased wood treatment operations at the site at the end of December
, ,

2003. Hazardous waste remains stored on site. From at least January, 1,2004 until the
present, Resp'ondent failed to provide site security for the hazardous \~aste storage
faci lity. I

I
Gravity-Based Penalty Component - Potential for Horm: An o,wner or operator of

a hazardous \taste storage facility must prevent the unknowing entry and minimize the
possibility foi the unauthorized entry of persons or livestock onto the active portion of his
facility unles~ he makes a demonstr~tion to the Regional Administratdr in accordance
with the RCR',A regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 264.14(a). Respondent faile~ to provide
security and failed to make a demonstration as regulatorily required. The potential for
harm is charatterized as "minor" due to the particular location of the facility at issue.

Extent\ofDevratiOIl: From at least January 1,2004 until the pJsent, Respondent
ceased wood treatment operations at the Facility and failed to provide for site security.
This is a substantial and "major" deviation from the regulatory require~ent.

No eJnomic benefit, or compliance history adjustments arc colntemPlateu [or this,
violation at this time.

COUNT YII: Failure to Have Financial Assurance

Potential for I-jam1 - Major
Extent o[ Deviation - Major

,

Days of Non-Compliance - One

Id c .. . I . d .Respon ent owns a wood treatment ,actlity WIt 1 a uup pa , an assocIated

26
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,

collection sJtem and two tanks. Respondent ceased wood treatment ;operations at the
end ofDecerhher 2003. While a large quantity ofhazardous waste was removed from the
site in Augu~t and October of2005, there are four hazardous waste units which remain on, ,

site. The Facility does not have fInancial assurance for closure of the facility which was
, I

required on at least January 1,2004 when Respondent became the owner and/or operator
of a hazardoJs waste management facility.

I
Gravity-Based Penalty Compollent - Potential for Harm: An qwner operator of a

hazardous wAste management facility must establish tlnancial assurance for the closure of
the facility. The purpose of requiring financial assurance is to provid~ a financial
mechanism J,hich can be utilized to perform RCRA closure of a haza~dous waste
management ifacility. The potential for harm is also "major" because ~espondenthas
informed representatives of EPA that it intends to file a petition for bankruptcy in the
immediate fu'ture, and that Respondent is unable to remove the hazardous waste on site
and to removt any contamination which may be present from past wObd treatment, ,

operations. The failure to have tlnancial assurance to perfoml closure has the potential to
put human h~alth and the environment at significant risk. I

E I {D .. Th d " ~ I . . " '. "bxten( 0 evwllon: e CYlatlon I[On1 t 1e reqUIrement IS major ecause

Respondent Fatied to establish any financial assurance, and Respondeitt has ceased
operations and left hazardous waste remaining on site. I

Eco'imic bco'r" m,yb, coI"I,,," fm'h', "01"'co. I

COUNT VIII: Failure to Obtain a Written Assessment for Two Tanks which do not
I .

have Secondary Containment I
I

i.. I
Potenttal for Harm - Major
Extent of Deviation - Major I
Days 6rNon-Compliance - One I

Respolndcnt owns two tanks: an 8,000 gallon tank, and an asso~iated collection
system tank fbr the drip pad, which were used to store hazardous wast~, F035, from at
least January 1,2004 until August 29, 2005. The two tanks are existi~g tank systems
which do not have secondary containment. Respondent must obtain and keep on tile, at
the Facility, a written assessment that attests to the integrity of each tank system.

Gravity-Base,f Pellalty Compollellt - Potentiallor H,wm: The purpose l,of requiring a
written assesstnent for tanks svstems which do not have secondary containment is to
determine tha\ the tank syste~s are not leaking or untlt for use. The ~,ritten assessment,
which must be kept at the Facility, must be reviewed and cel1ified by an independent,

I

\



qualified, registered professional engineer. The failure to have a writ~en assessment of
Respondent's two tank systems has the potential to put human health and the
environment!at significant risk. Therefore, sllch a violation presents ~ "'major" potential
for harm. !

I
Extent ojDeviation: From at least January 1,2004 until the present, Respondent has

, ,

failed to obtain and keep on file, at the Facility, a written assessment of the 8,000 gallon
tank and the kssociated collection system for the drip pad (tank). Thi~ is a substantial and
"'major" deviktion from the regulatory requirements.

No economJ. benefit, or compliance history adjustments are contemp~ated for this
violation at this time. I

121. COUNT IX:\ Failure to Obtain a Written Assessment of the Drip Pad

Potential for:Harm - Major I
Extent of Ddviation - Major

Days ofNoni-comPliance - One !

Respondent's drip pad was constwcted prior to October 1990 and is defined in 40
C.F.R. § 264.:570 as an "'existing" drip pad. As the owner/operator ofan existing drip
pad, Respondent was required to evaluate the drip pad and determine that it meets all of
the requiremJnts of Subpart W, except the requirements for liners and leak detection
systems. Thd, owner or operator must obtain and keep on file at the F~cility a written
assessment of the drip pad, reviewed and ce11ified by and independent, qualified
registered pr6fessional engineer that attests to the results of the evaluation. The
assessment m'ust be reviewed, updated and re-eertified annually until ~1I upgrades, repairs
or modificati6ns necessarY to achieve compliance with all of the standards of 40 C.F.R.

i "' :

§ 264.573 oqhis subpart, except the standards for liners and leak detection systems,
specified in 40 C.F.R. § 264.573(b). From at least January 1, 2004, Ryspondent failed to
obtain and ke~p on file at the Facility an evaluation of the drip pad as required.

I \
Gravity-Based Penalty Component- Potentialjor Harm: The ','potentialjor

harm" resulting from Respondent's failure to obtain a written assessment of the drip pad
, ,

is "'major." Subpart W drip pads are hazardous waste management units that are unique
I ••. '

to the wood Pfeservmg mdustry. Dnp pads arc used to accumulate and manage excess
wood preserving formulations following the treatment ofvirgin timbe~. Due to the nature, ,

of wood prese:rving wastes and the manner in which they are generated (i.e., over a very
large surface area), EPA discovered that the regulations governing traditional RCRA
hazardous wa$te management units were not particularly useful. To accommodate this
uniqueness and to ensure proper and consistent waste management, EiA developed

i
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I

I
specific standards for the design, installation, operation, and closure of hazardous waste
drip pads by 'recognizing drip pads as a new type of hazardous waste management unit
under RCM. One of the key clements of the existing drip pad regulations is the annual
evaluation re~uirement. The purpose of the annual drip pad evaluati~n is to make sure a
facility's driJ pad meets all the design and operating requirements. If a drip pad is not
designed and' operated properly, it will be unable to properly perform its primary function
of capturing ~nd accumulating spent wood prcservative, putentially resulting in the
release of haiardous waste or hazardous waste constituents into the e~vironment.

ExteJ ofDeviation- The extent of deviation associated with tts Count is
"major." Frdm at least January 1,2004 to the present, Respondent ha~ failed to obtain

, ,

and keep on tile a written evaluation for the Facility's drip pad. This is a substantial
deviation froin the regulatory requirements. i

I . fi .Economic Benefit ofNon-Compliance: Economic bene 1\ maybe calculated for
this violationl i

I I

CO(;NT X: Failure to Meet the Hydraulic Conductivity RequireI1jlent for the Drip
Pad I I

I I
Potential for ,Harm - Major 'I

Extent of Deviation from Requirements - Major I
Days of NonicumPliance - One

From at least January 1,2004 to thc prcsent, Respondent's drip pad did not have a
hydraulic conductivity of less than or equal to I x 10-7 centimeters per'second, e.g.,
existing conctete drip pads must be sealed, coated, or covered with a surface matcrial
with a hydraulic conductivity of less than or equal to I x 10-7 centimeters per second such
that the entire: surface where drippage occurs or may run across is capable of containing
such drippag~ and mixtures of drippage and precipitation, materials, or other wastes while
being routed t'o an associated collection system. I

Gravit-Based Penalty Component - PotentlGl for Harm: The ,I'potentialfor
harm" resultilig from the Respondent's failure to properly seal or coat the Facility's drip
pad to meet the hydraulic conductivity requirement is "major." One of the main goals of
the drip pad dhign standards is to prevent the now of waste from the drip pad to the
surrounding environment. Subpart W requires owners/operators to protect against the

, \

migration of hazardous wastes and their constituents into the environment. During EPA's
September 2094 and February 2005 CEls, the inspector observed CCA: waste preservative
being stored on the Respondent's concrete drip pad and associated collection system.
CCA is a wat~r-bomc preservative furmulation consisting of water. ar~enic acid, chromic

\ .

,

i
I



acid, and copper oxide. CCA is highly toxic and can damage mucous membranes and
, '

tissues of the respiratory system and cause chemical bums on the skin and even skin,
lesions. CCA has also been determined to be a possible carcinogen. Due to this, addition
of a sealant 6r coating to Respondent's drip pad is necessary as the p~d and associated
collection sy~tcm are constructed of concrete which is inherently porous. Without the
addition of a!lsealant or coating to the drip pad surface and associatcd',collection system,
there is no way to prevent hazardous wastes from seeping through the drip pad and/or
associated cbl1ection system into the surrounding environment. Furthermore,
Respondend drip pad is an "existing" drip pad and was constructed ~ithout a liner and
leakage dete~tion system. In the event CCA preservative did seep th~pugh the drip pad or
associated cb\lection system, the Facility would have no way of determining whether or
not there wa~ a release. Therefore, based on the specifics of this case: EP.'" dctermined
the potential Ifor hann to be substantial to human health and the environment, in addition
to the RCRA

l
Program, as a result of the Facility's failure to properly coat or seal the drip

,

pad \

Extent ofDeviation: Respondent's "extent ofdeviation " associated with this
I - -,

violation is "majoL" By failing to apply a sealant or coating to the Facility's drip pad and
,

associated cO,lIection system as requircd by WYHWMR §33-20-7.2, 'Yhich incorporates
by rcfcrence 10 C.F.R. § 264.573(a)(4)(i), Respondent completely failed to meet the
regulator reqilirement, resulting in a substantial extent of deviation. :

EconAmic Benefit o/Non-Compliance: No economic benefit Jas associated with
this counl. \

123. COUNT XI:IFailure to Minimize Tracking of Hazardous Waste from the Drip Pad
I '

Potential for Hann - Major
Extent of DeViation from Requirements- \!lajor

,

Days of Non-Compliance - T\\-o: September IS, 2004
\ and February 1,2005

I I,

During EPA's September 15,2004 and February 1,2005 Compliance Evaluation
Inspections, Respondent was using the Facility's drip pad, which was contaminated with

, '

CCA. as a storagc arca for fann equipment, a horse trailer and a car trailer as evidenced
I

by photographs taken during the eEls. Drip pads must be operated and maintained in a
manncr to mil\imize tracking of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents off the

! :
drip pad as a ~esult of activities by personnel or equipment. By moving and storing fann
equipment and horse/car trailers on and off of the drip pad which became contaminated
with CCA, Rdlspondent failed to mmimize the tracking of hazardous w'aste offofthe drip
pad as rey ulre.;!.

30
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Grm;ity-Based Penalty Componelll- Potentialfor Harm: The "potential for
harm" arisi~g from the Respondent's failure to minimize the tracking of hazardous waste
and hazardous waste constituents off of the drip pad is "major." The primary reason
behind RC~'s preservative containment requirements is to keep pr~servative chemicals
out of the grflUnd and surface waters. Contamination of soil and groundwater is a serious
problem becllUse it can move considerable distances as it is picked up by water moving
through the ~oil and the water table. Because there are few. if any, naturally occurring
organisms irt the environment that ean readily break down these chemicals, once the
contaminati~n enters the ground it has the potential to linger for long'periods of time and
cause extensive contamination to surrounding subsurface environments.

I . - l' fCCA h' h !h' h .RespoIl(knt uses a preservative lormu atlOn 0 ,w IC IS Ig Iy tOXIC due to
the presence 1,01' chromium and arsenic and is a possible carcinogen. At the time of EPA's
September 2004 and February 2005 inspections, the Facility was storing farm equipment,
a horse traile'r, and a car trailer on the drip pad which was contaminated with CCA. The
farm equipment is clearly used in applications where it regularly comes into contact with
soil, while th'e horse/car trailers are used for travel on public roadways. Based on this, the
Complainant' has determined that therc is a substantial potential for harm to human health
and the envirbnment, in addition to the RCRA Program, as a result of the Facility's
failure to mebt the requirements ofWVHWMR §33-20-7.2, which in~orporatesby
reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.5730), which requires the drip pad to be operated in a manner

, '

to minimize the tracking of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents off the drip
pad as a result of activities by personnel or equipment. i

E I,(D" R d'" ,I'd"" !. d . h h'xtent OJ eVllltLOn: espon ent s extent OJ evwtLOn aSSOCIate WIt t IS, ,
violation is also "major" as Respondent substantially deviated from the requirements of
WVHWMR §33-20-7.2, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. §,264.573(j), by
failing to operate and maintain the drip pad in a manner to minimize the tracking of

, .

hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents off the drip pad as a result of activities
by personnel fr equipment. I

, ,

Economic Benefit ofNol/-Compliance: No economic benefit was associated with

this count. \ .. \

COUNT XII:, Failure to Inspect Dnp Pad Weekly I

Potential for ~arm - Moderate I
Extent of Deviation from Requirements - Major I
Days of Non-Compliance - One I

From Lleast August 1,2001 until January 1,2004, Respondent failed to inspect
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I ,

the drip padlweekly and after stOITTlS to detect evidence of any deteri~rationor cracking 0 f

thc drip pad'\surfacc. ".',,, ..

Gra\'lty-Based Penalty Component: The potel/tlCll for harm, ansmg from thc
Respondent!s failure to meet the requirements ofWYHWMR §33-20-7.2, which
incorporates by refercnce 40 C.F.R. § 264.574(b)(3), is "moderate" due to thc fact the
wood treatirig operations were minimal and the drip pad was covered. In making this

,

detenninati~n, the Agency considered the design of the Facility's drip pad and the nature
of the preseo/ative. The Facility's drip pad was constructcd prior to ?ctober 24, 199U
and is defIned in 40 C.F.R. § 264.570 as an "existing" drip pad, thcrefore, it was not
constructed \vith a synthetic liner or leakage detection system. CCA contains toxic. ,
constituents that have the potential to cause skin, eye, and respiratory irritation as well as
more seriou~ ailments in humans. In addition, CCA is also considered a possible
carcinogen. tCA is water soluble, therefore, it is highly mobile.

The primary reason behind RCR.'\'s weekly inspcction requirement is to keep
dcterioration',ofthe drip pad from occurring so that preservative che~icals do not
contaminate ground and surface waters. Contamination ofsoi\ and groundwater is a
serious problem because it can move considerable distances as it is picked up by water
moving throJgh the soil and the water table. Because there are few, if any, naturally
occurring organisms in the environment that can readily break down these chemicals,
once the contamination enters the ground it has the potential to Iinger,for long periods of
time and cau~e extensive contamination to surrounding subsurface environments. Based
on this infoJT11ation, the Complainant has detelTTlined that there is a substantial potential
for halTTl to human hcalth, and the environment, in addition to the RCRA Program, as a
result of the ~acility's management practices of the drip pad with regard to the failure to
inspect the drip pad weckly and atter stOITTlS for deterioration or cracking of the drip pad

surface. I i

Etten. of Deviation: The "extent ofdeviation" associated Wit~ this violation is
"major." Res'pondent completcly failed to comply with the requirements of 4U C.F.R.
§ 264.574(b)(3) which requires the drip pad to be inspectcd weekly and atter stOITTlS to
detect deteriotation or cracking ofthe drip pad surface. At the time of EPA's September
2004 and Febiuary :W05 CE[s, there was a noticeable residuc ofeCA 'ami CCA
contaminated 'debris covering a majority of the Facility's drip pad surface.

Econalnic Bene})t o[ Non-Compliallce: No economic benefit w~s associated with

this count. \ \
, ,

COUNT XIII: Failure to Properly Store Land-Disposal-Restricted Waste

I
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128.

129.

130.

i
,,

\

I. \
Due to the fact that the Count Xlll arose from the same set of: facts as Count I, a

separate penklty will not be calculated for Count XIII. i
I I

Any violatio~ of this Compliance Order or further violation ofRCRA Subtitle C may
subject Resp'ondent to further administrative, civil and/or criminal en'forccment action,
including th~ imposition of civil penalties and criminal fines and/or imprisonment, as
provided in RCRA Section 3008, 42 U.S.c. § 6928. \

\ IV. OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING

Respondent lay request, within thirty (30) days ofrcccipt of this CO~Plaint, a hearing
before an EP~ Administrative Law Judge on the Complaint and at su~h hearing contest

, .

any material fact and the appropriateness of any penalty amount. To ~equest a hearing,
Respondent triust file a written answer ("Answer") within thirty (30) days of reccipt of
this Complaipt. The Answer should clearly and directly admit. deny or explain each of
the factual allegations contained in the Complaint of which Respondent has any,
knowledge. ;Nhere Respondent has no knowledge of a particular factual allegation, the
Answer should so state. Such a statement is deemed to bc a denial ofthe allegation. The
Answer should contain: (I) the circumstances or arguments which are, alleged to
constitute thd, grounds of any dcfcnse; (2) the facts which Respondent,disputes; (3) the
basis for opposing any proposed relief; and (4) a statement ofwhethe~a hearing is
rcqucstcd. All material facts not denied in the Answer will be considered to be admitted.

I I'
If Respondents fail to file a written Answer within thirty (30) days of receipt of this
Complaint, sJch failure shall constitute an admission of all facts allcg~d in the Complaint
and a waiver bfthe right to a hcaring. Failure to Answer shall result in the filing of a
Motion for D~fault Order and the possiblc issuance of a Default Order, imposing penalties
proposed her~in without further proceedings. I

I I
Any hearing r~quested by Respondent will be conducted in accordance with EPA's
Consolidated Rules of Practice, a copy of which is enclosed. Hearings will be held in a
location to be!detennined at a later date pursuant to the Consolidatcd Rules of Practice at
40 C.F.R. § 22.21(d). i

Respondcnt's IAnswer and all other documents that Respondent files ij this action should
be sent to: \ !

\Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) II

U.S. EPA Region 1Il
1650 Arch Street '
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 \

I
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I

I

and a copy ~hould be sent to Cheryl L. Jamieson, the attorncy assign~d to represent EPA
in this matter, at:

Office of Regional Counsel (3RC30)
U.S. EPA - Region !IT
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

V. SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

I

Complainant encourages settlement of the proceedings at any time after issuance of the
Complaint if such settlement is consistent with the provisions and objectives of RCRA.
Whether or riot a hearing is requesteo, Respondent may request a settlement conference

,

with the Complainant to discuss the allegations of the Complaint. A request for a
settlement conference ooes not relieve Respondent of its responsibility to file a timelv

, , -
~~e~ \ \

In the event settlement is reached, the tenns shall be expressed in a w'ritten Consent
Agreement pl,repared by Complainant. signed by the parties, and incorporated into a final
order signed py the Regional Administrator or the Regional Judicial Officer. The
execution or:,such a Consent Agreement shall constitute a waiver of Respondent's right to
contest the allegations of the Complaint and to appeal the Final Order accompanying the, '

Consent Agreement. I
I '

The Quick Resolution procedures set forth at § 22.18 of the Consolid;lled Rules of
Practice are riot applicable to this proceeding because this Complaint contains a

, '

compliance orde~ See 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(a)(l). :

[fyou wish Jarrange a settlement conference, please contact Ms. JaI~ieson, S~ Asst.
Regional CoJnsel, at (215) R14-2375. Once again, however, such a request for a
settlement cohference does not relieve Respondent of its responsibility to ole an Answer

,

within thirty (30) days following Respondent's receipt of this Complaint.

I I
VI. SEPARATION OF FUNCTIONS AND EX PARTE COMMCNICATIONS

The fOllowinJ Agency officers, and the staffs thereof, are designated Js the trial staff to
represent the ~gency as a party in this case: the Region 1II Office of Regional Counsel,
the Region I1I Waste and Chemicals Management Division, the Office of the EPA
Assistant Adri,inistrator for Solid Waste and Emergency Response, and the EPA
Assistant Ad~inistrator for Enforcement and Compliance Assurance. ',Commencing from
the date of the issuance of this Complaint until issuance of a final agency decision in this

I 34 !

\



Dat

case, ncithcrlthe Administrator, members of the Environmental Appe,als Board, Presiding
Officer, Regjonal Administrator, nor the Regional judicial Olticer, may have an ex parle
communication with the trial staff on the merits of any issue involved in this proceeding.
Please be adyised that the Consolidated Rules of Practice prohibit any unilateral
disCllssion or ex parte communication of the merits of a case with the Administrator,
members orlhe Environmental Appeals Board, Presiding Officer, Regional
Administratdr. or the Regional JudIcial Officer after Issuance of a Complaint.

I I
I . 7 . (, • ( ! : __I

ENCLOSURES;

I
consolidated

l

Rules ofPractice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

WeSI Virglilia Hazardous Wasle Af,magemem RegulatIOns.
I

Civil Monelap' PelJ(illy Adj/lslmem Rule. 40 C.F.R. Part 19.

I
RCRA Civil Penally Policy, June, 2003.

I .
Revised Penalty Matrices for RCRA Civd Penallv Policy, January, 20~5,

I
!

I
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BEFORE THE UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION III

In jhe Matter of:

Ke seI Lumber Supply, Inc.
He 84 Box 4
Ne1 Creek Drive
Kc}ser, West Virghlia 26726

I
Respondent

U.S. EPA Docket Number
RCRA-03-2006-0059

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

,

I
I
I

( c/ I" I' .1 "

Ch:~;'~~:~)res~~ '.', ·.'c'?'.....1 --"-~
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region 11I
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

I certify that dn the date noted below, I sent by Overnight Delivery Service, truc and
COlT ct copies of the Complaint, Compliance Order and Notice of Right to Request Hearing: inI

Re: I essel Lumher Supply ille., Ducker No. RCRA-03-2006-0059, to the persons and addresses
listel below. The original Complaint, Compliance Order and Notice of Right to Request Hearing
were hand-delivered to the Regional Heanng Clerk, l·.S EPA, RegIOn Ill.

I
Step~en Shuman, Esq.
Reed r & Shuman I
256

1
igh Street

Mor antown, WV 26507

Lawr nCe Kessel
HC 8 Box 4 I

New Freek Drive I
Keyst1r, West Virginia, 26726

I

I
I l r:;. , ,':~.. '!Date:

-r------_~ _


